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implications to warrant preparation of a
Federalism Assessment.

Executive Order 12988, Civil Justice
Reform

Under Executive Order 12988, the
Office of the Solicitor has determined
that these final rules would not unduly
burden the judicial system and that it
meets the requirements of sections 3(a)
and 3(b)(2) of the Order.

Executive Order 13175, Consultation
and Coordination With Indian Tribal
Governments [Replaces Executive Order
13084]

In accordance with Executive Order
13175, we have found that the final
supplementary rules do no include
policies that have tribal implications.
They merely clarify when a fee that is
already charged must be paid.

Paperwork Reduction Act

These final rules do not contain
information collection requirements that
the Office of Management and Budget
must approve under the Paperwork
Reduction Act of 1995, 44 U.S.C. 3501
et seq.

Author

The principal author of the final rules
is Chief Area Ranger Robert Zimmer,
Bureau of Land Management, El Centro
Field Office, California. Final Rules for
Payment of Special Recreation Permit
Fees Immediately Upon Arrival at the
Imperial Sand Dunes Recreation Area
Under 43 CFR 8365.1-8365.6, the
Bureau of Land Management will
enforce the following final rules on the
public lands within the area identified
as defined in the Imperial Sand Dunes
Recreation Area Management Plan as
the Planning Area Boundary, Mammoth
Wash Management Area, North
Algodones Dunes Wilderness
Management Area, Gecko Management
Area, Glamis Management Area,
Adaptive Management Area, Ogilby
Management Area, Dune Buggy Flats
Management Area, and the Buttercup
Management Area. These lands are
within the Imperial Sand Dunes Special
Recreation Management Area within the
lands managed by the El Centro Field
Office of the California Desert District,
California. You must follow these rules:

Sec. 1 When must visitors pay the
special recreation permit fees?

You must pay the special recreation
permit fees immediately upon arrival.

Sec. 2 How must permits be
displayed?

Any primary vehicle while on public
lands within the Planning Area
Boundary or the recreation area must

display a weekly or seasonal permit for
the areas described above.

Sec. 3 What are the penalties for
violations of these rules?

Under section 303(a) of the Federal
Land Policy and Management Act of
1976 (43 U.S.C. 1733(a)) and 43 CFR
8360.0-7 if you violate any of these final
rules on public lands within the
boundaries established in the rules, you
may be tried before a United States
Magistrate and fined no more than
$1000 or imprisoned for no more than
12 months, or both. Such violations may
also be subject to the enhanced fines
provided for by 18 U.S.C. 3571.

Dated: June 7, 2004.
Mike Pool,
California State Director.
[FR Doc. 04—21261 Filed 9—21-04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4310-40-P

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Employment and Training
Administration

[TA-W-55,371]

Ace Products, Inc., Lineville, AL;
Notice of Termination of Investigation

Pursuant to Section 221 of the Trade
Act of 1974, as amended, an
investigation was initiated on August 4,
2004, in response to a worker petition
filed by a company official on behalf of
workers at Ace Products, Inc., Lineville,
Alabama.

The petitioner has requested that the
petition be withdrawn. Consequently,
further investigation would serve no
purpose and the investigation has been
terminated.

Signed at Washington, DC, this 30th day of
August, 2004.

Elliott S. Kushner,

Certifying Officer, Division of Trade
Adjustment Assistance.

[FR Doc. E4—2308 Filed 9-21-04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4510-30-P

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Employment and Training
Administration

[TA-W-55,308 and TA-W-55,308A]

Candor Hosiery Mills, Inc., Troy, NC,
and Candor Hosiery Mills, Inc., Biscoe,
NC; Notice of Revised Determination
on Reconsideration

By letter dated August 25, 2004, a
petitioner requested administrative
reconsideration regarding Alternative
Trade Adjustment Assistance (ATAA).

The negative determination was signed
on July 29, 2004, and published in the
Federal Register on August 20, 2004 (69
FR 51716).

The workers of Candor Hosiery Mills,
Inc., Troy, North Carolina and Biscoe,
North Carolina were certified for Trade
Adjustment Assistance (TAA) on July
29, 2004.

The initial ATAA investigation
determined that the skills of the subject
worker group are easily transferable to
other positions in the local area.

The petitioner alleges in the request
for reconsideration that the skills of the
workers at the subject firm are not easily
transferable.

Additional investigation has
determined that the workers possess
skills that are not easily transferable. A
significant number or proportion of the
worker group are age fifty years or over.
Competitive conditions within the
industry are adverse.

Conclusion

After careful review of the additional
facts obtained on reconsideration, I
conclude that the requirements of
section 246 of the Trade Act of 1974, as
amended, have been met for workers at
the subject firm.

In accordance with the provisions of
the Act, I make the following
certification:

All workers of Candor Hosiery Mills, Inc.,
Troy, North Carolina (TA-W-55,308) and
Candor Hosiery Mills, Inc., Biscoe, North
Carolina (TA-W-55,308A), who became
totally or partially separated from
employment on or after July 22, 2003,
through July 29, 2006, are eligible to apply
for adjustment assistance under section 223
of the Trade Act of 1974, and are also eligible
to apply for alternative trade adjustment
assistance under section 246 of the Trade Act
of 1974.

Signed in Washington, DC this 10th day of
September, 2004.
Elliott S. Kushner,
Certifying Officer, Division of Trade
Adjustment Assistance.
[FR Doc. E4-2307 Filed 9—21-04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4510-30-P

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Employment and Training
Administration

[TA-W-54,768]

Crystal Springs Apparel, LLC, Crystal
Springs, Mississippi; Notice of Revised
Determination on Reconsideration

On July 27, 2004, the Department
issued an Affirmative Determination
Regarding Application on
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Reconsideration applicable to workers
and former workers of the subject firm.
The Notice was published in the
Federal Register on August 10, 2004 (69
FR 48526).

On June 21, 2004, the Department
initially denied TAA to workers of
Crystal Springs Apparel, LLC, Crystal
Springs, Mississippi because the
workers performed administrative and
warehousing activities and did not
produce an article as defined by the
Trade Act of 1974, as amended.

In the request for reconsideration, the
company official stated that the subject
worker are not service workers. Rather,
the subject worker group produces knit
shirts and woven shirts (men’s and
ladies’) and are not separately
identifiable by product line.

During the reconsideration
investigation, the Department
determined that the subject worker
group are production workers and
conducted an investigation to determine
whether the workers are eligible to
apply for trade adjustment assistance.

The reconsideration investigation
revealed that subject company sales,
production, imports and employment
levels declined in 2003 from 2002 levels
and declined during January—April 2004
from the corresponding time period in
2003.

The Department also surveyed the
subject company’s major declining
customers regarding their purchases of
knit and woven shirts (men’s and
ladies’) for time periods 2002, 2003,
January—April 2003 and January—April
2004. The survey revealed that major
declining customers increased their
imports of knit and woven shirts like
and directly competitive with those
produced at the subject company while
decreasing their purchases from the
subject company during the relevant
period.

Conclusion

After careful review of the additional
facts obtained on reconsideration, I
conclude that increased imports of
articles like or directly competitive with
knit and woven shirts produced at the
subject firm contributed importantly to
the declines in sales or production and
to the total or partial separation of
workers of Crystal Springs Apparel,
LLG, Crystal Springs, Mississippi. In
accordance with the provisions of the
Act, I make the following certification:

“All workers of Crystal Springs Apparel,
LLC, Crystal Springs, Mississippi who
became totally or partially separated from
employment on or after April 21, 2003
through two years of this certification, are
eligible to apply for adjustment assistance
under Section 223 of the Trade Act of 1974.”

Signed in Washington, DG, this 10th day of
September, 2004.
Elliott S. Kushner,
Certifying Officer, Division of Trade
Adjustment Assistance.
[FR Doc. E4-2305 Filed 9-21-04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4510-30-P

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Employment and Training
Administration

[TA-W-55,432]

Down River LLC, White City, OR;
Notice of Termination of Investigation

Pursuant to Section 221 of the Trade
Act of 1974, an investigation was
initiated on August 12, 2004 in response
to a petition filed by a company official
on behalf of workers at Down River LLC,
White City, Oregon.

The petitioner has requested that the
petition be withdrawn. Consequently,
the investigation has been terminated.

Signed in Washington, DG, this 1st day of
September, 2004.

Elliott S. Kushner,

Certifying Officer, Division of Trade
Adjustment Assistance.

[FR Doc. E4-2310 Filed 9-21—04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4510-30-P

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Employment and Training
Administration

[TA-W-55,490]

Federal Mogul Corporation, Lagrange,
GA; Notice of Termination of
Investigation

Pursuant to Section 221 of the Trade
Act of 1974, an investigation was
initiated on August 20, 2004 in response
to a petition filed by a company official
on behalf of workers at Federal Mogul
Corporation, LaGrange, Georgia.

The petitioner has requested that the
petition be withdrawn. Consequently,
the investigation has been terminated.

Signed in Washington, DG, this 26th day of
August 2004.

Elliott S. Kushner,

Certifying Officer, Division of Trade
Adjustment Assistance.

[FR Doc. E4—-2312 Filed 9-21-04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4510-30-P

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Employment and Training
Administration

[TA-W-55,404]

Johnson Controls, Inc., Glasgow, KY;
Notice of Termination of Investigation

Pursuant to Section 221 of the Trade
Act of 1974, as amended, an
investigation was initiated on August 9,
2004 in response to a worker petition
filed by the company on behalf of
workers at Johnson Controls, Inc.,
Automotive Group, Glasgow, Kentucky.

The petitioner has requested that the
petition be withdrawn. Consequently,
the investigation has been terminated.

Signed at Washington, DC this 31st day of
August, 2004.

Linda G. Poole,

Certifying Officer, Division of Trade
Adjustment Assistance.

[FR Doc. E4-2309 Filed 9-21-04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4510-30-P

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Employment And Training
Administration

[TA-W-54,674]

Major League, Inc., Mt. Airy, NC; Notice
of Affirmative Determination Regarding
Application for Reconsideration

By application of August 3, 2004, a
petitioner requested administrative
reconsideration of the Department of
Labor’s Notice of Negative
Determination Regarding Eligibility to
Apply for Worker Adjustment
Assistance, applicable to workers of the
subject firm. The denial notice was
signed on May 14, 2004, and published
in the Federal Register on June 2, 2004
(69 FR 31135).

A previous request for administrative
reconsideration was dismissed on July
21, 2004. The Department’s Notice of
Dismissal of Application for
Reconsideration was published in the
Federal Register on August 4, 2004 (69
FR 47182).

The Department carefully reviewed
the August 3, 2004 request for
reconsideration and has determined that
the Department will conduct further
investigation based on new information
provided by the petitioner and the
company official.

Conclusion

After careful review of the
application, I conclude that the claim is
of sufficient weight to justify
reconsideration of the Department of
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